
June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 1 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

CITY OF FERNDALE – HUMBOLDT COUNTY CALIFORNIA – U.S.A. 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

Location: City Hall 
834 Main Street 
Ferndale CA 95536 

Date: June 2, 2011 

 Time: 7 pm 

 Posted: 5/30/11  
 
We welcome you to the meeting. Members of the Public may be heard on any business item on this Agenda before or 

during the City Council consideration of the item. The public may also directly address the City Council on any item of interest 
to the public that is not on the Agenda during the public comment time; however, the City Council generally cannot take action 
on an item not on the agenda. 

A person addressing the City Council will be limited to five (5) minutes unless the Mayor of the City Council grants a 
longer period of time. While not required, we would appreciate it if you would identify yourself with your name and address 
when addressing the Council. 

This City endeavors to be ADA compliant. Should you require assistance with written information or access to the 
facility, or a hearing amplification, please call 786-4224 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

TO SPEAK ON ANY ISSUE, BE ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE MAYOR BEFORE PROCEEDING TO THE PODIUM, STATE YOUR 
NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD (optional), AND DIRECT YOUR COMMENTS ONLY TO THE COUNCIL. 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – Mayor 
2. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 
3. ROLL CALL – City Clerk 
4. CEREMONIAL:  

a. Lemonade Day Proclamation - Kathy Miller - Student Projects 
Coordinator ........................................................................................................  Page 4 

b. Recognition of Doug Culbert as Operator of the Year .......................................  Page 5 
5. MODIFICATIONS TO THE AGENDA 
6. STUDY SESSIONS  
7. PUBLIC COMMENT. (This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on 

any matter not on this agenda and over which the Council has jurisdiction. Items 
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next 
regular agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of 
the Council that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an 
urgent nature requiring immediate action. This portion of the meeting will be 
approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each speaker given no 
more than five minutes.) ................................................................................................  Page 6 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR. (All matters listed under this category are considered to 
be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. Unless a 
specific request is made by a Councilmember, staff or the public, the Consent 
Calendar will not be read. There will be no separate discussion of these items. 
However, if discussion is required, that item will be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and considered separately under “Call Items.”) 

a. Acceptance of Accounts Payable .......................................................................  Page 7 
b. Approval of previous minutes: May 5, 2011 ......................................................  Page 17 

9. CALL ITEMS 
10. PRESENTATION / Community Forum  .............................................................................  None 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 2 

 
 

11. BUSINESS 
a. Eel River Disposal – Universal Pick up and Green waste ...................................  Page 20                                                                                                                                                        
b. Resolution 2011-23 for 10th Progress Pay Request for Management and 

Construction Related Costs for the Wastewater Treatment Plant ....................  Page 21 
c. Resolution 2011-24 Authorizing MOU between City and Special District 

Risk Management Authority's Health Benefits Ancillary Coverages .................  Page 25 
d. Resolution 2011-25 Authorizing the City to Borrow Funds from NVB 

(replaces 10-45) .................................................................................................  Page 27 
e. Set date for Budgetary workshop ......................................................................  Page 29 
f. Set date for City Manager Evaluation  ...............................................................  Page 29 
g. Ferndale / Navy Housing Update .......................................................................  Page 30 

12. CORRESPONDENCE  ........................................................................................................  Page 34 
13. REPORTS 

a. City Manager Staff Report and Community Events ...........................................  Page 35 
b. Commissions / Committees and others 

i. Design Review Committee ....................................................................  Page 44 
ii. Ferndale Library Board .........................................................................  Page 48 

iii. Planning Commission ............................................................................  Page 49 
c. Council Reports and Comments 

i. HWMA ...................................................................................................  Page 52 
14. --- 
15. --- 
16. ADJOURN ........................................................................................................................  Page 64 

 
This notice is posted in compliance with Government Code §54954.2. 
The next Regular Meeting of the Ferndale City Council will be held on 

THURSDAY, July 7, 2011 in the Auditorium of City Hall at 7:00pm 

 

  



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 3 

 
 

Section 1 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Section 2 
Pledge Allegiance 

 
Section 3 

Roll Call 
 

Section 4 
Ceremonial 

 
Lemonade Day Proclamation 

Kathy Miller - Student Projects Coordinator 

Humboldt County Office of Education 

 

Doug Culbert, Chief Plant Operator 

 

 

 
  



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 4 

 
 

                                      City of Ferndale     INCORPORATED 1893 
                                                 POB 1095; Ferndale CA 95536 

 
 

 

 

City of Ferndale, California 
PROCLAMATION 

 
WHEREAS: Lemonade Day is a free, collaborative, community-wide educational event providing children with the 
opportunity to learn and apply entrepreneurial thinking and create a foundation for success in the global economy; 
and 
 
WHEREAS: Small businesses started by innovative entrepreneurs in our community create the economic backbone 
of our economy; and 
 
WHEREAS: Lemonade Day exists to infuse today’s youth with the spirit of enterprise, teaching the basic business 
and entrepreneurial skills necessary to become successful, contributing members of their communities; and 
 
WHEREAS: Young people who participate in youth entrepreneurship feel a strong sense of control in their lives 
that says “I have influence over my own life and I can affect the person I become;” and 
 
WHEREAS: Lemonade Day has a core philosophy of Spend, Save, and Share that is implemented by teaching 
children how to manage their money by establishing a budget, seeking investors, paying for their own expenses, 
saving part of their profits and giving back to the community; and 
 
WHEREAS: Youth entrepreneurship increases persistence in schools and decreases dropout rates because students 
see more real work relevance to what they are learning in the classroom; and 
 
WHEREAS: Lemonade Day offers opportunities for families, businesses, schools, youth organizations, faith-based 
communities, neighborhoods, institutes of higher learning, economic development and government agencies to 
unite for a common purpose – to train the next generation of entrepreneurs; and 
 
WHEREAS: Young people who have looked at the world through a business owner’s eyes make better employees 
down the road; and 
 
WHEREAS: Lemonade Day is an event that demonstrates to young people of Ferndale that they are important and 
citizens care about their future; and 
 
The City of Ferndale salutes and commends organizers, volunteers and participants of Lemonade Day, a program 
that advances life skills, character, and entrepreneurship, and extend best wishes for a successful and rewarding 
observance. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jeff Farley, Mayor of Ferndale, do hereby proclaim the first Saturday in June as:  
 

“NORTH COAST LEMONADE DAY” 
 

AND encourage all residents of Ferndale to participate and have a role: either selling or buying Lemonade, on June 
4, 2011. 
  



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 5 

 
 

 
 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 6 

 
 

Section 5 

Modifications to the Agenda 
 

Section 6 
Study Sessions 

 

Section 7 

Public Comment 
 

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda 
and over which the Council has jurisdiction. 
 
Items requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next regular 
agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rd of the Council (three of 
the five members) that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgent 
nature requiring immediate action. 
 
This portion of the meeting will be approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each 
speaker given no more than five minutes. Please state your name and address for the record. 
(This is optional.) 

 

Section 8 

Consent Agenda 
 
All matters listed under this category are considered to be routine by the City Council and will 
be enacted by one motion.  
 
Is there anyone on the Council, Staff or the public that would like to pull an item off the 
Consent Agenda for scrutiny? Those items will be considered separately under “Call Items.” 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 7 

 
 

      

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 8 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 9 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 10 

 
 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 11 

 
 

               



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 12 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 13 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 14 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 15 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 16 

 
 

 

  



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 17 

 
 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
City Council Minutes for the May 5, 2011 Meeting 6:30 p.m. 

 

Mayor Jeffrey Farley called the Study Session to order at 6:30 p.m. Present were Councilmen Titus and 
Maxwell  as well as City Manager Jay Parrish, City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, Finance Manager Deb 
Austrus, Project Manager Kent Hanford. Councilmen Mierzwa and Lorenzen were absent.  

Wastewater Treatment Plant Project Manager Kent Hanford talked with the council about Change 
Orders 4 and 5, as well as the Contract Change Order Summary. Hanford answered questions from the 
Council. The study session ended at 6:56pm. 

Mayor Jeffrey Farley called the Regular City Council Meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Present were 
Councilmen Titus, Lorenzen and Maxwell  as well as City Manager Jay Parrish, City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-
Slocum, Finance Manager Deb Austrus, Project Manager Kent Hanford, City Planner George Williamson 
and Police Chief Bret Smith. Councilman Mierzwa was absent. Those present pledged allegiance to the 
flag.  

Ceremonial: The City Clerk read the “Older Americans Month Proclamation” and Mayor Jeffrey Farley 

presented the Proclamation to Dr. George Ingraham. The City Clerk read the “National Bike Month – 

May 2011” and Mayor Jeffrey Farley presented the Proclamation to Mr. Bill Etter. Both recipients gave 

short speeches.  

Consent Calendar: MOTION: (Titus/Maxwell) Accept Accounts Payable, Approve the minutes for April 7, 
2011 and April 21, 2011. Unanimous vote 3-0 (Councilman Lorenzen abstained which is not counted as a 
vote, according to the Rosenberg’s Rules of Order). 

Presentation: Supervisor Jimmy Smith talked to the Council about the Humboldt County General Plan 
Update and how it affects the City of Ferndale. Martha Spencer, Sr. Planner for the County of Humboldt 
spoke on the phases of the update, how public comment has been collected throughout the process and 
how questions have been answered. Planning Staff prefers Alternative B, but the Planning Commission 
can pick and choose between the alternatives when the General Plan is presented to them. John Miller 
talked about our Sphere of Influence. The City’s sphere is within the city limits. LAFCo has not adopted a 
sphere of influence outside the city limits of Ferndale. There is an area of critical concern which includes 
the Francis Creek Watershed. As far as development outside the city limits, we are surrounded mostly 
by Agricultural Exclusive, Timber Production, Agriculture General (smaller parcel sizes) and others. In all 
four alternatives the immediate surrounding area land uses remain the same. Miller counseled the City 
to ask the County to continue to let us know about development in our area of Special Concern. General 
Plan Update information was distributed to the Council. 

Ferndale Housing Element: Planner George Williamson explained where the city’s housing element is 
right now, and what still has to be done to answer the Housing and Community Development’s (HCD) 
concerns. Williamson believes there are sufficient existing R2 and R4 sites to accommodate HCD’s 
requirements of an additional 40 units. MOTION: (Maxwell/Titus) Approve.  All in favor. 

Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP): Project Manager Kent Hanford talked about the WWTP 
Construction Project as well as change orders discussed during the study session immediately before the 
City Council Regular Meeting. We are still within budget, even with the change orders. MOTION: 
(Titus/Maxwell) Approve Resolution 2011-20 9th Progress Pay Request for Management and 
Construction Related Costs for the WWTP. Unanimous. MOTION: (Titus/Maxwell) Approve Change 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 18 

 
 
Order 4, resulting in an increase in construction costs of $52661.77 and Change Order 5, resulting in a 
credit to construction costs of $3624.73. Motion carried with a Nay from Councilman Lorenzen. 

Unmet Transit Needs Follow-up: City Manager Jay Parrish explained that all the City needed to do at this 
point is to let HCAOG know what the comments were on unmet transit needs. The next step would be 
for HCAOG to look into the feasibility of any programs that may be associated with requests from the 
entity or the public. 

PARSAC Joint Powers Agreement (JPA), Revision of Governing Documents: City Manager Jay Parrish 
explained that five years ago PARSAC was 130th in the state for pools of cities. Now it is within the top 5, 
and many non-municipal entities want to join the JPA. The changes in the language of the governing 
documents will allow for non-municipal entities to join. 

Mobile Vendors Process Change: While examining our existing ordinance it was found that there is a 
section of the existing ordinance that governs mobile vendors. Using that section will enable staff to 
develop an appropriate process and possible ordinance change. 

Staff Reports and Community News: City Manager Parrish talked about the Navy Housing acquisition. 
The City is now looking at July for the property to be turned over to the City. It will then take some time 
to renovate the units. The Navy’s delay has been a boon to the city’s coffers for security and sewer 
charges. Parrish also explained that our Chief Plant Operator, Doug Culbert has been recognized as the 
top Wastewater Operator in California. During our June Meeting the city will give recognition to Culbert.  

The meeting was adjourned at 8:40 pm. The next regular council meeting will be June 2, 2011. 

Respectfully Submitted: 

 

 

Nancy Kaytis-Slocum 

City Clerk 

 

  



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 19 

 
 

 

 

 

Section 9 
 

CALL ITEMS 
 

These are items pulled from the consent agenda  
for discussion and a separate motion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 10 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 
 

 
 

Section 11 
 

BUSINESS 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 20 

 
 

Meeting Date: June 2, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11a 

Agenda Item Title: Eel River Disposal – Universal Pickup and Greenwaste 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item:  Action  Discussion x Information 

Action Required: x No Action  Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Receive and File 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Eel River Disposal will present information on Universal Pickup and Greenwaste pickup. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Unknown 

 

  



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 21 

 
 

 

Meeting Date: June 2, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11b 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2011-23 for 10th Progress Pay Request for Management 
and Construction Related Costs for the WWTP 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution 2011-23 10th Progress Pay Request for Management and Construction 
Related Costs for the WWTP. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Work on our WWTP began on August 2, 2010 and this is the 10th draw down from the USDA 
loan. The costs associated with this draw down include costs from Wahlund Construction for 
$606,861.12, Construction Management costs from Manhard Consulting for $33,394.52 and 
Kemp Inspection Services for $50.00. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
$640,305.64 from the USDA loan account. 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 22 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2011-23 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE  

APPROVES THE TENTH PARTIAL PAYMENT REQUEST TO WAHLUND CONSTRUCTION, MANHARD 

CONSULTING FOR THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY PROJECT 

 

WHEREAS, Wahlund Construction began Work on our Wastewater Treatment Plant on August 2, 2010; 

and  

WHEREAS, Manhard Consulting is supplying Construction Administration for this project; and  

WHEREAS, The City of Ferndale will be processing partial pay requests on a monthly basis, as well as 

periodic individual bills; and  

WHEREAS, The City Council has received the tenth partial payment request of $606,861.12 for Wahlund, 

$33,394.52  for Manhard Consulting and $50.00 for Kemp Inspection. This all falls within the parameters 

of our WWTP budget. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Ferndale hereby approves 

payment of the Tenth partial payment request in the amount of $606,861.12 for Wahlund, $33,394.52 

for Manhard Consulting and $50.00 for Kemp Inspection for a total of $640,305.64. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 2nd  Day of June, 2011 by the following vote:  

AYES:       

NOES:      

ABSENT:    

ABSTAIN:    

                    ____________________ 

                Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 23 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 24 

 
 

  



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 25 

 
 

Meeting Date: June 2, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11c 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution No. 2011-24 Authorizing a Memorandum of 
Understanding Regarding the Special District Risk Management 
Authority’s Health Benefits Ancillary Coverages. 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approve Resolution No. 2011-24 A Resolution of the City Council of the city of Ferndale 
approving the form of an authorizing the execution of a Memorandum of Understanding and 
authorizing participation in the special district risk management authority’s health benefits 
ancillary coverages. 
 
BACKGROUND: 

 
The City Council by Resolution 2011-17 approved a medical and dental insurance provider 
change, and by Resolution 2011-18 approved the necessary language for the Special District 
Risk Management Authority’s Medical Benefits Program. 
 
The Resolution currently in front of you is the necessary language for the Health Benefits 
Ancillary Coverages, which includes Dental. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

Savings on dental of $1000 a year from last year’s costs.  



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 26 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-24 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE APPROVING THE FORM OF AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND AUTHORIZING 
PARTICIPATION IN THE SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY’S HEALTH BENEFITS 

ANCILLARY COVERAGES 

WHEREAS, The City of Ferndale, a public agency duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the 
State of California (the “Entity”), has determined that it is in the best interest and to the advantage of the Entity to 
participate in Health Benefits Ancillary Coverages offered by the Special District Risk Management Authority (the 
“Authority”); and the Entity understands a condition of participation in Health Benefits Ancillary Coverages is a 
minimum of 3 full years; and  

WHEREAS, Special District Risk Management Authority was formed in 1986 in accordance with the provisions of 
California Government Code 6500 et seq., for the purpose of providing risk financing and risk management 
programs; and other coverage protection programs; and 

WHEREAS, participation in Special District Risk Management Authority programs requires the Entity to execute and 
enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (the “MOU”); which states the purpose and participation 
requirements for Health Benefits Ancillary Coverages; and 

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by the laws of the State of California to exist, to have happened 
and to have been performed precedent to and in connection with the consummation of the transactions 
authorized hereby do exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner 
as required by law, and the Entity is now duly authorized and empowered, pursuant to each and every 
requirement of law, to consummate such transactions for the purpose, in the manner and upon the terms herein 
provided. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE ENTITY AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Findings.  The Entity’s Governing Body hereby specifically finds and determines that the actions 
authorized hereby relate to the public affairs of the Entity. 

Section 2. Memorandum of Understanding.  The Memorandum of Understanding, to be executed and entered 
into by and between the Entity and the Special District Risk Management Authority, in the form presented at this 
meeting and on file with the Entity’s Secretary, is hereby approved.  The Entity’s Governing Body and/or 
Authorized Officers (“The Authorized Officers”) are hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on 
behalf of the Entity, to execute and deliver to the Authority the Memorandum of Understanding. 

Section 3. Program Participation.  The Entity’s Governing Body approves participating for a minimum of three 
full years in Special District Risk Management Authority Health Benefits Ancillary Coverages. 

Section 4. Other Actions.  The Authorized Officers of the Entity are each hereby authorized and directed to 
execute and deliver any and all documents which is necessary in order to consummate the transactions authorized 
hereby and all such actions heretofore taken by such officers are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved. 

Section 5. Effective Date.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 2
nd

 day of June, 2011 by the following vote: 

AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  

 
                                                                             
Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 

Attest: 
 
                                                                             
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 

 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 27 

 
 

Meeting Date: June 2, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11d 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution No. 2011-25 Authorizing the City to Borrow Funds from 
NVB (replaces 10-45) 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approve Resolution No. 2011-25 Authorizing the City to Borrow Funds from NVB (replaces 10-
45) 
 
BACKGROUND: 

 
The Loan Department at North Valley Bank requests a new resolution every year. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

Unknown  



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 28 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-25 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO BORROW 
FUNDS FROM NORTH VALLEY BANK (Replaces 10-45) 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Ferndale applied for a $2,436,000.00 Hazard Mitigation Grant to reduce the 
frequency of flooding in the City from Francis Creek from the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Ferndale was required to provide matching funds for twenty-five percent 
(25%) of the approved project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Ferndale found it necessary to borrow a portion of the required matching 
funds, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Ferndale shall be authorized to borrow an 
amount not to exceed ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY SEVEN THOUSAND, NINE HUNDRED EIGHTY SIX AND 
43/100 DOLLARS ($187,986.43) at a rate not to exceed FOUR AND THREE QUARTERS PER CENT 
(4.75%) from NORTH VALLEY BANK with a maturity date of August 30, 2011.  Payments amortized 
over 20 years all due and payable annually; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the loan is designated as a qualifying tax exempt obligation of the 
City of Ferndale within the meaning of Section 265(B)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Manager and City Clerk or Deputy City Clerk shall be 
authorized to sign loan documents to secure aforementioned loan. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on June 2, 2011 by the following 
vote: 
 
Ayes:   
Noes: 
Abstain: 
Absent:  
      _________________________________  
      Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
_________________________________  
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 

  



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 29 

 
 

Meeting Date: June 2, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11e 

Agenda Item Title: Set date for Budgetary workshop 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Set a date for budget study session.   
 
 

 

 

 

Meeting Date: June 2, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11f 

Agenda Item Title: Set date for City Manager Evaluation 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Set date for the City Manager Evaluation, as discussed in January. 
 
  



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 30 

 
 

Meeting Date: June 2, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11g 

Agenda Item Title: Ferndale / Navy Housing Update 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item:  Action  Discussion x Information 

Action Required: x No Action  Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Receive and File. 
 
BACKGROUND: 

 
TO:  Ferndale City Manager Jay Parrish  
FROM:  Elizabeth Conner, Housing Specialist 
RE:  Legal Issues Related to Disposition of Ferndale Housing 
DATE:  May 22, 2011 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 
As conveyance of the Navy Housing Complex to the City of Ferndale approaches, the City will 
move to a final decision as to the disposition of the property. Several options are being 
considered. As the council looks at the options, the City Manager felt a review of the legal 
issues involved would be prudent at this time. This memo does not make recommendations or 
indicate preferences; rather it gives an overview of the key legal issues at play related to the 
disposition of the Ferndale housing. 
 
1.  Ensuring the Property is Used for the Purpose for Which the Funds Were Appropriated by 
the Federal Government 
 
Whichever disposition option is chosen, the City needs to take steps to ensure that the property 
is used for the purpose for which the federal government appropriated the $3.8 million to 
purchase this property from the Navy for the City of Ferndale.  This is best accomplished by 
placing permanent and binding restrictions on use of parcel by recording Codes, Covenants and 
Restrictions (CC&R’s) on the deed.  
 
The following language was placed in the 2010 Defense Appropriations Bill by Congressman 
Mike Thompson: 
 
The 52-unit housing complex lies within the boundaries of the City of Ferndale.  The city has 
identified a need to provide low- and moderate -income senior and family housing opportunities 
to its residents.  Therefore, I request that the Secretary of the Navy transfer, without 
reimbursement, the real property known as the Centerville Navy Housing Complex to the City of 
Ferndale, Humboldt County California. 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 31 

 
 

 
The appropriation was included in the 2010 Defense Budget based on the language in that 
request. Definitions of low-income and moderate-income and percentages for each category 
need to be included in the legal agreements.  
 

2.  Avoiding Gift of Public Funds 

When the City conveys the property to another entity, it must avoid a gift of public funds. The 
gift of public funds is a concept whereby a government entity cannot give away public money to 
individuals, employees or entities.  (See Article XVI, Section 6 California Constitution).  

If the property is conveyed to a non-profit, a gift of public funds can be avoided if the property 
is used for certain public purpose by virtue of an enforceable restriction. Housing is one of the 
allowed public purposes. This is generally done with a Real Property Loan Agreement and a 
Promissory Note secured by a Deed of Trust. These “loans” could, for example, carry a 3% 
interest and be due and payable in 45 to 50 years; the loans would be zeroed out or marked 
“paid in full” if all the terms of the Loan Agreement were met.    
 
If the property is conveyed to a for-profit company in exchange for market value of the 
property, this would not constitute a gift of public funds. However, even if the property was 
sold at market value, it would still have its use restricted as discussed above because the 
federal appropriation was for a defined purpose and the City must ensure that it is used for that 
purpose.  
 
 
3.  Requirement to Open Bid Process and Sell to Highest Bidder 
 
If the City Council decides to sell the property to a for-profit enterprise, state and federal laws 
require the City to put the property on the market and sell to the highest eligible bidder. This 
does not apply to a non-profit company because they would be using the property solely for 
the public purpose.  
 
 
4.  Agreement Enumerating Standards, Funding of Reserves and Resident Selection Criteria 
 
Throughout the public process discussing the future of this property, members of the City 
Council and the public expressed the need for the property to be well-maintained so that it is 
an asset to the City.  In order to ensure this, these standards must be codified in a legal 
document that can be enforced. The City should not rely on luck or the good intentions of 
individuals who may not be in charge years down the road. 
 

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/waisgate?waisdocid=13237012000+0+0+0&waisaction=retrieve


June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 32 

 
 

Many jurisdictions use what is called a Regulatory Agreement to clearly define the legal 
relationship between the jurisdiction and whatever entity will own and run the complex over 
the long-term.  
 
Whatever the agreement is called, it is also where the City would clarify, define and enumerate 
issues such as on-gong upkeep on the property, the percentage of funds that go into reserves, 
infrastructure maintenance and contributions and required reports to the City. Such an 
agreement could also include a request or requirement relating to the preferred composition of 
the residents i.e. seniors, local preference or such.  
 
 
4. Right of First Refusal to the City 
 
The City would also want the right of first refusal and the right to approve sale of the property 
to another owner. This could be put in both the Loan Agreement documents and the 
Regulatory Agreement.  
 
 
5. Use of Improvements and Land 
 
If the City Council decides to sell to a for-profit entity, the City will want to consider whether it 
wants to comment on use of improvements other than housing units and the use of the 
property itself. Does the City want to allow the property to be subdivided in the future so that 
accessory dwelling units/ mother-in-laws or other units could be built or remain silent? If so, 
these issues should be addressed in the CC&R’s and the Regulatory Agreement.  
 
After the City Council decides which entity it would like to convey to, City Attorney David 
Martinek could draft the necessary documents for City Council review.  If Martinek feels the 
issues are not within his area of expertise, we have made arrangements for one of three or four 
attorneys statewide with this specific expertise to review the drafts and comment – or draft 
documents, if required - at reduced rate of $320/hour. We also have sample documents, 
written by Attorney Nancy Diamond, one of the lawyers with this specific expertise.  
 
 
 

 

  



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 33 

 
 

Section 12 
 

CORRESPONDENCE 
 

Correspondence Files are available for review at City Hall during 
regular business hours, Monday through Thursday, 9am to 4pm. 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 34 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 35 

 
 

Section 13 

REPORTS 
 

Section 13a:  City Manager Staff Report 
 
CITY MANAGER: 
 
Meetings and Projects:  

 Kiwanis meeting 1st and 3rd Tuesday of the month at 4:30 pm 

 City Council- May 5th 5:30-9:00 pm 

 City Manager meeting- May 19th 3:00-5:00 pm 

 Planning Commission meeting-  May 18th 7:00-8: 45pm 

 Chamber of Commerce – May 23rd 5:30- 7:00 pm 

 RCEA May 16th- 3:00- 5:00 pm 

 Meeting with ERD May 17th regarding universal pickup and greenwaste 

 Weekly meeting on WWTF progress with Manhard project manager. 

 Daily meetings with chief regarding police activities. 

 Daily interaction with Staff regarding daily workload. 

 Met with construction manager, Wahlund construction representative and USDA 
representative, to go over monthly pay request. Also went over construction progress, and 
change orders. We continue to look for ways to reduce costs and save time. We are close to 
halfway and still within budget parameters.  

 Continuing discussions with Fresnel lens committee members to go over a project to move Lens 
from fair to museum. Received letter from CG regarding a MOU agreement and responded back 
through our attorney. 

 Numerous conversations regarding Salt River Project with Watershed Council members, NRC 
representatives, council members and citizens. Farm Bureau dropped their lawsuit. Jimmy Smith 
reported that he attended a meeting in Oakland with Donna Chambers and Michael Bowen and 
that the Conservancy approved a grant for 2 million dollars for the SRRP. We should be very 
close to having enough money to complete the permitting phase. 

  Numerous meetings with individual councilmen and the mayor regarding City issues.  

 Numerous discussions with RCEA representatives regarding our EECBG grant that will support a 
project in the schools. Remember this is a $25,000 grant to reduce electrical consumption and 
should have significant savings for the schools. 

 Daily meetings with Public Works in morning to go over daily activities. Capital improvements, 
WWTF progress, I&I reduction, training and mapping improvements dominating conversations. 

 Daily discussions and updates on City Council agenda items and city issues with City Clerk and 
Treasurer. Considerable time in developing procedures and documentation relating to building 
and planning issues, and design review situations and interaction with PC and DR committee. I 
have met with chairmen of the PC and DR regarding the sign ordinance and compliance issues. 
Met with owner of the Shaw house to go over her interaction with the DR committee and have 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 36 

 
 

delivered a letter regarding her signage and set up a meeting with myself and a couple DR 
committee members to go over her sign. 

 A number of conversations with Parsac ED going over board meeting in Sacramento and City 
issues. 

 Discussions with City Planner regarding design review and planning issues. Most time spent on 
Housing Element and the general plan update and city budget. Asked them about signage 
ordinance for possible input. 

 Daily interaction with City Finance Supervisor on budget and department interaction to explain 
use of funds. This is the time of year that we analyze last year’s budget and put together what 
we believe next year’s budget will look like. We are anticipating asking the Council to schedule a 
budget study session sometime in the second or third week in June. This should give use plenty 
of time to go through budget. 

 Completed the transition application process to move the city to a new medical insurance 
carrier and are working on our dental plan. Should have something ready for next council 
meeting. 

 Navy Housing: Conversations with Karen Ringel of the Navy regarding their progress in 
completing the lead and asbestos study and the remediation of house 101. We continue to work 
on alternatives for possible transfer of ownership. I am still asking for keys to the complex so we 
can do inspections. 

 We are waiting for new police car to be retrofitted with lights and all the bells and whistles.  

 We are making headway on the landing pads that the park benches will sit on. It looks like the 
new benches will require more room than the old ones and we are in the process of designing 
the new pads. We will take out the old pads and put new pads that match the old sidewalks and 
have safety in mind. 

 
 

CITY CLERK: 
Meetings  

 Design Review Meeting – 4/28/11 

 City Council Meeting – 5/5/11 

 Design Review Special Meeting – 5/5/11 

 Planning Commission Meeting – 5/18/11 

 Meetings with City Manager regarding daily work schedule. 
 
Council Meeting Follow Up 

 Transcribed Council minutes for the May 5, 2011 meeting. 

 Filed Original Council minutes for April 7, 2011 and April 21, 2011. Uploaded to Website. 

 Filed Original Resolution 2011-20 9th Progress Pay Request for Management and Construction 
Related Costs for the WWTP in Resolution Book, made copy for Project Manager, filed copy in 
WWTP USDA payments. 

 Created Minute Order 2011-03 pertaining to WWTP Change Orders 4 and 5 – filed in minute order 
book, filed in WWTP Change Orders. 

 Wrote letter to HCAOG regarding Unmet Transit Needs Public Hearing results. 

 Added Mobile Vendors to next City Council Meeting 

 Added Doug Culbert, Top Wastewater Operator in California, recognition to June Agenda. 
 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 37 

 
 
Planning Commission Follow Up 

 Transcribed Planning Commission minutes for the May 18, 2011 meeting 

 Filed Original Commission minutes for the April 20, 2011 meeting. Uploaded to the Website. 

 Filed Original Resolution No. 2011-22PC making the required findings of fact listed in Attachment A 
to approve the Use Permit, subject to the conditions of approval listed in Attachment B, and allow 
for vacation rental use of the existing residence located at 100 Harrison Street. Placed copy in 100 
Harrison Street folder. 

 Wrote letter to 100 Harrison Street applicant regarding approval of their Vacation Rental 
application. 

 Added Signs to the June 15, 2011 Planning Commission Packet. 

 Contacted Webmaster to discuss a General Plan page to be added to our website. 
 
Design Review Committee Follow Up 

 Assembled and disbursed design review committee meeting packets for special and regular design 
review meetings. 

 
Projects 

 Expanded files in City Clerk’s Office 

 Working with staff to change procedure for Non-profit use of the Community Center and City Hall. 

 Answer land use questions and building permit questions for phone and counter inquiries. 

 Training Assistant – writing out instructions for all duties 
o Building Permits  
o Daily and weekly duties  
o City Clerk duties 
o Land Use Permits – how to process. 
o Design Review Committee: follow-up to minutes for Design Review, including adding new 

items to the Planning Commission agenda, as well as the next Design Review agenda; 
writing letters to applicants whose projects were before the Committee 

o City Council meeting: put packet together and where to find information. 
o Instructions on creating a postcard and doing a mail merge 

 
Building and Encroachment Permits Issued 

1135 Dewey complete bonus room 

464 Shaw partial tear off, re-roof 

405 Main lateral inspection 

151 Shaw Widen driveway 

1319 Main repair foundation, new shingles 

790 Herbert remove old roof covering, install plywood 

 

 
FINANCIAL MANAGER/DEPUTY CITY CLERK: 
 
Meetings 

 City Council Meeting 

 Meet with Public Works and City Manager on Budget 2011-2012 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 38 

 
 

 Various Phone Conferences and Emails in regards to Dental Insurance  with City Manager and 
CSAC/SDRMA 

 Meet with Chief of Police on Budget 2011-2012 

 Meet with City Manager on various Office issues 

 Meet with City Manager and Chief Sewer Operator on Budget 2011-2012 

 Various meetings with City Manager on Budget 2011-2012 
 

Projects 

 Payroll 

 Accounts Payable 

 Accounts Receivable 

 Daily Banking 

 Answer Phones/Greet Visitors 

 Purchase Various Supplies 

 Receive and File April Financial Reports 

 Update 2010-2011 Budget 

 Prepare Various Health Insurance Forms 

 File Various Health Insurance Forms 

 Prepare Quarterly Reports 

 Research Dental and Vision Coverage 

 Enrollment forms for Dental Coverage 

 Request funds for Mandated Cost/ SB90 

 PG&E contract for WWTF 

 Printout LAIF Statement 
 

 

CITY PLANNER: 
Meetings & Planning Materials  

 Coordinated with City Manager and City Clerk on planning and development projects.  

 Researched Mills Act implementation and if the Mills Act can apply retroactively to completed 
projects, per City request. 

 Responded to County housing questions related to homelessness.  

 Coordinated with County planning staff for review of how the County’s draft interim third party 
certification protocol for off-site grown medical cannabis is consistent with Ferndale’s medical 
marijuana dispensary moratorium.     

 Computerized Mapping - updated the City’s GIS roads database. 
 

Projects  

 100 Harrison Street - Use Permit to allow for vacation rental use of the existing residence. 
Reviewed application and prepared staff report for May 18 Planning Commission hearing.   

 General Plan Update - Historic & Cultural Resources Element - Continued preparation of new 
element including historic & cultural setting, historical resources and design review, and goals 
and policies. Coordinated with City manager about City and public review of Draft Element. 
Completed draft element and submitted to City staff for review.  



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 39 

 
 

 General Plan Update - Housing Element Update - Began responses to March 1 Housing & 
Community Development (HCD) department letter.  Reviewed and revised vacant land inventory 
figure and table. Started small sites analysis based on HCD comments.    

 

CITY ENGINEER: 
 
Sewer Projects:  – 

o New Sewer Manholes Main Street, Cleanouts other locations  
 Working with Caltrans for Encroachment Permit  

o Bid opening for pipe repairs to minimize infiltration June 1, 2011 
Pedestrian Improvement Project –  

o Focus project on Herbert Street (fine tune design) 
o Prepare Construction Documentation for May bid 

Applications –  

o Correct Keyes LLA, revisions to Notice of LLA per Assessor’s Office 
General Engineering –  

o ARRA reporting for Pedestrian Improvement Project 
o Review opportunities for new transportation projects funded by State or Federal sources 
o General support for cemetery boundary line correction 

Meetings and Committees –  
o No meetings during May 

Reporting and Correspondence –  
o Prepared monthly staff report 
o General correspondence and meetings with City Staff 

 
PUBLIC WORKS: 
 

Will be starting creek walk on June 1st. 

 

City Property  

 Firemen’s Park 
o Routine Maintenance, i.e. Mowing Park and Baseball Field. 
o Routine daily walk through to pick-up garbage.  
o Mowed the Bocce area and BB Field. 
o Cut back the trees at the east end of the park. 

 Park Restrooms 
o Routinely cleaned every day of the week including weekends. 

 Russ Park 
o Routine maintenance: Pulling out trash from trash & recycle bins daily. 
o Picked-up loose garbage from Russ Park. 

 Town Hall 
o Routine mowing and weedeating 
o Pull out trash daily 
o Replaced light bulbs on the greens. 

 Library 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 40 

 
 

o Routine mowing and weedeating 

 City Parking Lot 
o Picked up garbage – Routinely as least once a week unless otherwise warranted. 
o Replaced light bulbs (street lights) 
o Cut back trees and hauled debris. 

 Main Street Restrooms 
o Routine maintenance: Daily cleaning and stocking of Main Street Restrooms – 7 days a week. 

 Community Center 
o Routine checking of CC when the facility is rented before and after. 
o Called Town & Country to fix the gas range. 
o Changed all the locks. The kitchen was rekeyed too. 
o Town & Country to fix the fridge. 
o Kitchen rewired and heater in door. 

 Police Department 
o Routine mowing and weed eating 
o Filled pot holes. 

 Scout Hall - Routine mowing and weedeating  

 Roadsides - Routine mowing and weed eating 
 

Streets, Sidewalks and Storm drains 

 Removed debris from all the drains around town. 

 Routine maintenance: Regular maintenance of roadside mowing. 

 Routine picking up trash at the edge of town. 

 Routine maintenance: Continuing to pick-up piles around town as resident call and request removal. 

 Routine maintenance: Sweep Main St., Monday, Wednesday and Friday mornings. 

 Marked out USA locates throughout town. – When needed. 

 Removing piles. 

 Cleaned the gutters with a high school (their yearly community service) crew. Started on Main St to 
Herbert to Rose and finished at Cream Court. 

 Roadside mowing everywhere. 

 Patching roads all over town. 

 Cleaned 5th St of mud for better drainage. 

 Cleaned streets all over town. 

 Put up a “NO DUMPING” sign at the end of the Howard St. easement.  
 
Vehicle / Equipment Maintenance 

 Routine monthly maintenance and weekly maintenance on frequently used equipment. 
  

Miscellaneous 

 Routine paperwork. 

 Fiscal year paperwork & Meeting. 

 Dealing with daily work orders as residents call. 

 Viewed Safety videos. 

 Went to Bay West to pickup supplies. 

 Mowing constantly in May. Too much rain and grass growth! 
 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 41 

 
 
 

WASTEWATER OPERATIONS: 

 Prepared monthly sample containers 

 CPO assisted City Staff with computer tech issues. 

 Ordered chemicals for the WWTP. 

 Worked with Manhard in putting together information for RFP for fixing leaks on 13 sites within the 
collection system. RFP went out on the 12th of May and bid opening will be May 26th. 

 CPO attended Cal Rural Water Association Expo in Lake Tahoe. Attended numerous workshops 
including learning about Critical Assessment of Sewer Systems, Managing Sewer Systems, I&I 
management and putting together a Capital Improvement Program. 

 Filled out POs for monthly invoices 

 Discussed CTR issues with Lisa Bernard. History: CTR is the California Toxic Rule that monitors for 
metals that could be harmful to aquatic life in receiving waters. Currently the city is seeing high 
levels of Copper. CPO discussed the Water Effect Ratio (WEF) process with Lisa Bernard. Currently 
the minimum levels in our permit are based on studies done using clear, distilled lab water rather 
than effluent and receiving water. The test measures the toxicity levels of metals and how quickly 
and to what levels they adhere to fish. By using clear lab water it allows the metals to contact the 
fish quicker and to a greater degree since the water is pure and has little to no turbidity or solids to 
attach to. By using effluent and receiving waters the metals attach more to turbidity and other solids 
in the water and less to the fish thus giving a more accurate picture of the amount of metals that 
can be added to receiving waters with little or no effect on aquatic life. The WEF testing procedure 
takes samples of the City’s effluent and receiving waters and tests the toxicity if the respective metal 
on the fish. Ultimately a favorable result would mean that our limits are raised and in some 
instances completely dropped from our permit. The CPO is looking into the process and what it 
would take to get these tests done. Since metals are only measured during the winter discharge 
months, we have plenty of time for research and implementation.  

 CPO attended workshop at the CRWA expo regarding management software for the new sewer 
facility. This software is not the same as the SCADA software but will integrate with it and simplify 
operations. CPO discussed networking issues with the SCADA system and this software with Josh 
Downs, Portland Engineering.  

 Worked on power point slide show to present at June City Council Meeting showing progress since 
last presentation.   

 Ongoing inspection and site visits to WWTP construction site; consults with contractors 
o Filter/Control building is complete minus the rollup doors. Interior office is framed, wired, 

plumbed and dry walled. 
o Aeration basin is completed 
o Most of the equipment is onsite and put in place 
o Poured bases for pump platform as well as slab for pneumatic tank @ discharge site  
o Catwalk in place on Aeration tank 

 Chemical delivered to WWTP.  

 Worked on budget 

 Monthly meeting with Debbie Coggins 

 Conference call with Josh Downs, Portland Engineering and Kurtis Warne, SEMS technology 
regarding integration of system software at sewer plant. 

 Haz Mat Inspection at Public Works by Humboldt County 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 42 

 
 

 CPO attended CWEA monthly board meeting in Mckinleyville 

 CPO assisted in office answering phones and helping customers while office staff gone.  

 Downloaded video files from May City Council and Planning Commission. Edited files and burned to 
DVD for archiving. 

 CPO reviewed and signed daily operation sheets for WWTF  

 CPO performed the daily operation of WWTP during operator Coppini’s scheduled day off. 

 Completed and mailed monthly Self Monitoring Report to the Regional Board 

 Operator Coppini performed general maintenance around the facility 

 Operator Coppini filed online SSO report.  

 Operator Coppini performed the normal in-house weekly and monthly testing and scheduled lab 
work to be done. 

 

POLICE DEPARTMENT: 

 Officers provided assistance and monitored the Tour of the Lost Coast Bicycle Ride. 

 Chief Smith attended Kiwanis meetings/functions. 

 Chief Smith attended the monthly LECAH meeting. 

 Officer Diaz attended the monthly LETMA meeting. 

 Officers assisted with and monitored the Memorial Day activities, including the parade and the 

Kinetic Race 

Police Statistics – April 2010 

SERIOUS CRIMES Number Cleared 
Homicide 0   
Rape 0   
Robbery 0   
Larceny 0   
Assault 0   
Burglary 0   
Vehicle Theft 0  
  
TOTAL 0 
SECONDARY CRIMES 5 
Calls for Service 55 
Reports Written 9 
  

April 2011 Flows Average Minimum Maximum 

Influent MGD .416 .289 .734 

Effluent MGD .689 .315 1.515 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 43 

 
 
  
Traffic Citations 20 
Other Citations 6 
Parking Citations 1 
Warnings 45 
ARRESTS 4 
AGENCY ASSISTS 13 
TRAFFIC COLLISIONS 2 
 

 

  



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 44 

 
 

Section 13b: Commissions, Committees and Others 
 

  City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
Design Review Minutes for the 4/14/11 8:30am special meeting 

 
Vice Chair Dane Cowan opened the special meeting at 6:30pm. Committee Members Michael 
Bailey and Michael Sweeney along with staff City Manager Jay Parrish and City Clerk Nancy 
Kaytis-Slocum were present. Lino Mogni and Dan Brown were absent.  There were no 
modifications to the agenda. 
 
325 Main Street – window signage. MOTION: (Sweeney/Bailey) Approve the sign as a 
combination of a sign and a nameplate. All in favor. 
 
Comments: Cream City Café flashing espresso sign did not go through design review. 
Committee member Sweeney reported that he’d been discussing the Historical and Cultural 
Resources Element with City Planner Vanessa Blodgett along with Kirk Gothier of the Ferndale 
Museum. As part of our education and outreach program he would like to put the element on 
the city’s webpage, and have the museum link to it for public comment. Committee member 
Cowan reported that the fence on Willis Hadley’s land between the Shaw House Inn and Sylvia 
Sterling’s property is merely a mock-up. Bailey talked about the definitions of signs as well as an 
outline for a possible sign ordinance. Questions to bring forward in the discussion may include 
how do we currently tell a person to remove a sign that has not been authorized? Where are 
the teeth in our current ordinance? This is what we have been working on, and does the 
Planning Commission support the concept? 
 
The next regular meeting will be April 28, 2011 at 8:30am. The meeting was adjourned at 
9:27am. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum 
City Clerk 

  



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 45 

 
 

  City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
Design Review Minutes for the 4/20/11 6:30pm special meeting 

 
Chair Dan Brown opened the special meeting at 6:30pm. Committee Members Lino Mogni, 
Michael Bailey, and Dane Cowan along with staff City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum were present. 
Michael Sweeney was absent.  There were no modifications to the agenda. 
 
452 Main Street – Juice bar including bamboo and paint on entry and door. Discussion included 
whether the colors chosen for the door and the entryway floor, and the bamboo 
embellishment around the outside of the building and the doorway was Victorian in nature. 
MOTION: (Cowan/Bailey) The Design Review Committee does not approve the application. All 
in favor. Staff was directed to ask the applicants to submit a different color/material scheme or 
to appeal the Committee’s decision to the Planning Commission. 
 
393 Main Street – Remove built on lean to at the rear of the building. MOTION: (Cowan/Bailey) 
Approve removal/demolition of the lean to at the rear of the building. All in favor. When the 
applicants decide upon the design of the exit from the upstairs, it should come back to the 
Design Review Committee. 
 
Comments: Committee member Bailey talked about goals for the Design Review Committee, 
including definitions of signs, and an outline for a possible sign ordinance. Committee member 
Mogni felt it is not the job of the committee to set goals. Chairman Brown explained that the 
rules we have been working under are vague and that we need better, more clear tools to make 
decisions. City Manager Parrish noted that the City Council has goals that may overlap the 
Planning Commission’s goals; that the City Council may give direction to or approve of the 
Planning Commission’s Goals; and that the Planning Commission may give direction to or 
approve of the Design Review’s Goals. Bailey asked if it would be appropriate for him to bring 
his outline and definitions to the Planning Commission as an individual. The consensus was that 
it would be more appropriate for the Design Review Committee to bring it forward to the 
Planning Commission. Jorgen von Frausing-Borch felt that the Design Review Committee should 
bring ideas forward to the Planning Commission and get approval from the Commission to 
move forward. 
 
The next regular meeting will be April 28, 2011 at 8:30am. The meeting was adjourned at 
6:58pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum 
City Clerk 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 46 

 
 

  City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
Design Review Minutes for the 4/28/11 8:30am meeting 

 
Chair Dan Brown opened the meeting at 8:36am. Committee Members Lino Mogni, Michael 
Bailey, and Dane Cowan along with staff Administrative Assistant Brianna Smith were present. 
Michael Sweeney was absent.   
 
The minutes from the previous three meetings were accepted by MOTION: (Cowan/Bailey). All 
in favor. There was no public comment. 
 
Public Education: Tabled until next meeting. 
 
Code Enforcement:  Discussion about the ongoing issues with code enforcement and how 

complaints are being delayed. 

Sign Ordinance Presentation: MOTION: (Cowan/Brown) Authorize Michael Bailey as a 

committee member to make a sign ordinance presentation to the Planning Commission. All in 

Favor 

Procedure for finals on Design Review projects-List of Design Review’s recently passed:  

MOTION: (Bailey/Cowan) Assign various Design Review committee members to finalize each 

design review application.  If a building permit has been assigned, staff can call or notify 

committee member(s) that a final has been called in. Staff will give the paperwork to whomever 

is assigned to look at it (so that colors, shapes, [the look] can be compared). If no building 

permit is in place, staff can let a committee member know when the project is complete. All in 

Favor 

Historical Record of Architectural Changes:  No discussion. Done 

Restaurant Matias additional signage on windows/ Shaw house Inn :   Restaurant Matias: Notify 

Mr. Matias that the additional sign has been included in the square footage of the total signage 

permitted let him know what his total signage is and give him an option to decide what signage 

he would like to take down so that he can come into compliance with Design Review.  Shaw 

House Inn: Denial is based on Zoning Ordinance 02-02 Section 7.23 and Section 6.05.1(c)(d). 

Comments: Discussion involved objections to committee’s decisions. If the public wants to 
speak on an issue they can come to a meeting and speak during public comment, and ask to be 
put on the agenda for the next upcoming meeting.    
 
The next regular meeting will be May 26, 2011 at 8:30am. The meeting was adjourned at 9:43. 
 
Respectfully submitted: Brianna Smith Administrative Assistant  



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 47 

 
 

 

  City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
Design Review Minutes for the 5/5/11 8:30am special meeting 

 
Vice Chair Dane Cowan opened the special meeting at 8:30am. Committee Members Michael 
Bailey, Lino Mogni and Michael Sweeney along with staff City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum were 
present. Dan Brown was absent.  There were no modifications to the agenda. 
 
724 Main Street – exterior paint. MOTION: (Sweeney/Bailey) Approve exterior paint colors as 
shown on example brought to meeting. All in favor. 
 
Comments: Staff was requested to bring the original application to the meeting in case there is 
a variation in color between the original and the scanned version. Michael Sweeney talked 
about the museum’s link to the city’s webpage to review the housing element draft. Dane 
Cowan talked about not representing the Design Review Committee outside of a meeting. The 
committee made some suggestions on changes to the Field Observation Form. [Requested 
addition to minutes by Lino Mogni] Request to staff. Lino recommends going through sign 
ordinance, picking out highlights and making a handout to give to applicants. [End addition] 
 
The next regular meeting will be May 26, 2011 at 8:30am. The meeting was adjourned at 
8:50am. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum 
City Clerk 
 
 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 48 

 
 

 

  



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 49 

 
 

C i t y  o f  F e r n d a l e ,  H u m b o l d t  C o u n t y ,  C a l i f o r n i a  U S A  
Minutes for Planning Commission Meeting of April 20, 2011 

 
Call to Order: Chair Jorgen Von Frausing-Borch called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 
7:00p.m.  Commissioners Lino Mogni, Nancy Trujillo, Trevor Harper and Dan Brown as well as staff City 
Manager Jay Parrish, City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum and City Planner Vanessa Blodgett were present. 
Those in attendance pledged allegiance to the flag.  
 
MOTION: (Harper/Mogni): The February 16, 2011 minutes were unanimously approved. There was no 
public comment.  
 
Correspondence: The commission questioned the Restaurant Matias signage on the window glass. After 
some discussion it was learned that the signage is not etched onto the glass, but is an applied decal. This 
item needs to go back to the Design Review committee. 
 
Draft Historical and Cultural Resources Element Goals and Policies: Planner Blodgett explained that the 
draft goals presented here included comments previously given by the Planning Commission and Design 
Review Committee. Additional comments were given by the Planning Commissioners. 
 
Goals: The City Manager talked about goals being set by the City Council and asked that the Planning 
Commission begin thinking about goals and that some of those goals may be passed on to the Design 
Review Committee. Chair von Frausing-Borch determined that he and the City Manager will work on 
goals, then call for a work study session including the Design Review Committee. 
 
Lighting and Signage:  The Ad Hoc committee previously set up is now past their 6 month mandate. 
Design Review Committee member Michael Bailey explained that because of frustration of having to use 
a flawed Ordinance to review design review applications, he had taken it upon himself to spend some 
time putting together definitions as well as an outline for a possible Sign Ordinance for the City of 
Ferndale. The Commission asked Mr. Bailey to get background information and possible ordinance 
changes to the Commissioners before the next meeting, and to have this item put on the next Planning 
Commission agenda for Mr. Bailey to make a presentation to the Planning Commission. 
 
Historical Record of Architectural Changes: This would entail a change in the building permit process to 
include photographs of the building before changes are made. MOTION: (Trujillo/Harper) Direct staff to 
include the necessity for a photographic record to be submitted with the building permit application. All 
in favor. 
 
Public Education: Hold this over to the next agenda. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted:  
 
 
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 50 

 
 

C i t y  o f  F e r n d a l e ,  H u m b o l d t  C o u n t y ,  C a l i f o r n i a  U S A  
Minutes for Planning Commission Meeting of May 18, 2011 

 
Call to Order: Chair Jorgen Von Frausing-Borch called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 
7:00p.m.  Commissioners Lino Mogni, Nancy Trujillo, Trevor Harper and Dan Brown as well as staff City 
Manager Jay Parrish and City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum were present. Those in attendance pledged 
allegiance to the flag.  MOTION: (Brown/Harper): The April 20, 2011 minutes were unanimously 
approved. There was no public comment.  
 
100 Harrison Avenue – Vacation Rental Application. Commissioner Trujillo recused herself. Chairman 
von Frausing-Borch opened the public hearing. Staff introduced the item recommending approval. Ms. 
Trujillo, as property manager for the applicant, was there to answer questions. Mr. Dick Hooley said he 
was not opposed to this particular vacation rental, but opposed to Vacation Rentals in residential 
districts. He doesn’t like the idea of transients coming in and out. The public hearing was closed. Ms. 
Trujillo then left the room for the commission discussion and vote. MOTION: (Brown/Mogni) Adopt 
Resolution No. 2011-22PC making the required findings of fact listed in Attachment A to approve the 
Use Permit, subject to the conditions of approval listed in Attachment B, and allow for vacation rental 
use of the existing residence located at 100 Harrison Street. Four in favor, one absent (Trujillo, who had 
recused herself). Ms. Trujillo re-joined the commission. 
 
Reaffirmation of direction given to Design Review: City Manager Jay Parrish explained that with the 
chart and documents included in the packet, it can be shown that the Planning Commission directed the 
Design Review committee to look at all sections of the Zoning Ordinance that pertain to Design Review. 
In the chart and in the documents presented at the meeting, it can be shown that the Planning 
Commission directed the Design Review committee to look at all sections of the Zoning Ordinance that 
pertain to Design Review. Both the Planning Commission and the City Council accepted the Design 
Review’s mission statement. This was an information only item. 
 
Signs: Design Review Committee member Michael Bailey presented his research on signs to the Planning 
Commission, including an outline for a possible sign ordinance. Commissioner Trujillo distributed a 
packet of information she had compiled on signs. A lengthy discussion followed touching on: does the 
Planning Commission have the authority to spend money? No, only the council can do that; 
enforcement issues, comments on various signs in the city, open and closed signs, vacancy, no vacancy 
signs, what is the definition of a sign?, complaint driven enforcement. The Chamber of Commerce is 
holding a meeting on May 23, 2011 at 5:30 pm at the Village Inn conference room. It was requested that 
the clerk notice the meeting in case a quorum of the City Council, Planning Commission or Design 
Review Committee would happen to be there. MOTION: (Trujillo/Mogni) Hold this item over to the next 
meeting, with no further action. Aye: Trujillo, Mogni, von Frausing-Borch; Nay Brown; Abstain (which is a 
no vote) Harper. Motion carried.  
 
Public Education: Design Review Committee member Michael Sweeney spoke on his efforts to move 
forward with ways to inform and educate people in the community. One way would be to post the 
DRAFT Historic and Cultural Resource online and ask for comments within a certain time period. Kaytis-
Slocum will check with the web master to see if a General Plan page can be created, and will check with 
the City Manager to see who will collect the comments. The meeting was adjourned at 8:50 p.m. The 
next regular meeting will be June 15, 2011.  
Respectfully submitted: Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 51 

 
 

 
 

Section 13c: Council Reports and Comments 
 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 52 

 
 

 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 53 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 54 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 55 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 56 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 57 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 58 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 59 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 60 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 61 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 62 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 63 

 
 

 



June 2, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 64 

 
 
 

 

 

Section 16 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 


